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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended March 28, 2009

OR

¨ Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from              to             

Commission file number 0-13470

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Delaware 94-2276314
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I. R. S. Employer

Identification No.)

1550 Buckeye Drive, Milpitas, CA 95035
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code: (408) 545-6000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.     Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).   ¨ Yes     ¨  No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
�accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer  ¨ Accelerated filer  ¨ Non-accelerated filer  x Smaller reporting company  ¨
(Do not check if a smaller

reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).     Yes  ¨    No  x

As of May 8, 2009, there were 18,683,065 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value, issued and outstanding.
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PART I � FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands except share amounts)

(Unaudited)

March 28,
2009

December 27,
2008

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,896 $ 23,980
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $731 and $309, respectively 10,262 17,143
Inventories 32,597 31,583
Inventories- delivered systems 189 205
Prepaid expenses and other 2,113 1,838
Deferred income taxes 337 350

Total current assets 62,394 75,099
Property, plant and equipment, net 39,518 40,136
Intangible assets, net 6,532 6,901
Other assets 1,598 1,718

Total assets $ 110,042 $ 123,854

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Revolving line of credit $ �  $ �  
Accounts payable 4,513 4,824
Accrued payroll and related expenses 2,846 3,435
Deferred revenue 705 1,701
Other current liabilities 4,285 5,800
Income taxes payable 1,026 1,187
Current portion of debt obligations 390 413

Total current liabilities 13,765 17,360
Other long-term liabilities 784 644
Debt obligations 12,995 13,083

Total liabilities 27,544 31,087

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders� Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 3,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding �  �  
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 47,000,000 shares authorized; 18,417,770 and 18,413,054, respectively,
issued and outstanding 18 18
Additional paid-in capital 190,243 189,927
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Accumulated deficit (107,275) (96,643)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (488) (535)

Total stockholders� equity 82,498 92,767

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 110,042 $ 123,854

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Amounts in thousands except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Net revenues:
Products $ 4,940 $ 27,929
Service 5,117 6,799

Total net revenues 10,057 34,728

Costs of net revenues:
Cost of products 3,695 13,662
Cost of service 3,516 5,238

Total costs of net revenues 7,211 18,900

Gross profit 2,846 15,828
Operating expenses:
Research and development 3,239 4,255
Selling 3,615 4,839
General and administrative 3,972 5,524
Amortization of intangible assets 369 1,285
Restructuring charge 689 870

Total operating expenses 11,884 16,773

Loss from operations (9,038) (945)

Other income (expense)
Interest income 15 98
Interest expense (266) (77)
Other, net (1,359) 454

Total other income (expense), net (1,610) 475

Loss before provision (benefit) for income taxes (10,648) (470)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (19) 254

Net Loss $ (10,628) $ (724)

Net loss per share:
Basic $ (0.58) $ (0.04)

Diluted $ (0.58) $ (0.04)
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Shares used in per share calculation:
Basic 18,415 18,590

Diluted 18,415 18,590

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

(Unaudited)

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (10,628) $ (724)
Reconciliation of net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,417 2,559
Stock-based compensation 318 918
Accounts receivable reserves 422 17
Deferred taxes 24 �  
Unrealized foreign exchange loss on intercompany loan 818 �  
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of assets acquired:
Accounts receivable 6,225 5,872
Inventories, net (1,676) 2,679
Inventories-delivered systems 9 549
Prepaid expenses and other (314) (600)
Other assets 48 118
Accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities (2,125) (5,017)
Deferred revenue (826) (835)
Income taxes payable (155) 126

Net cash provided by (used in) operations (6,443) 5,662

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (273) (1,535)

Net cash used in investing activities (273) (1,535)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of debt obligations (81) (38)
Proceeds from sale of shares under employee stock option plans and purchase plan �  39
Repurchases of common stock �  (281)

Net cash used in financing activities (81) (280)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (287) (43)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7,084) 3,804
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 23,980 14,919

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 16,896 $ 18,723

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash for interest $ 249 $ 82
Cash paid for income taxes $ 80 $ 18

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

In the opinion of management, the accompanying Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (�financial statements�) of Nanometrics
Incorporated and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively, �Nanometrics� or the �Company�) have been prepared on a consistent basis with the
December 27, 2008 audited consolidated financial statements and include all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring adjustments,
necessary to fairly present the information set forth therein. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(�SEC�), and, therefore, omit certain information and footnote disclosure necessary to present the statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The operating results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the
operating results that may be expected for the entire year. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 27, 2008, which were included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form
10-K, which was filed with the SEC on March 27, 2009.

Fiscal Period � Nanometrics uses a 52/53 week fiscal year ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31. All references to the quarter refer to
Nanometrics� fiscal quarter. The fiscal quarters presented herein include 13 weeks.

Reclassification � The Company reclassifies certain prior year amounts to conform to the current presentation. During the fourth quarter of 2008,
the Company determined that amortization of demonstration systems, which was previously recorded on the cash flow statement as a deduction
in the carrying value of its inventories, should be classified to the depreciation and amortization line item on the cash flow statement.
Amortization of demonstration systems of $0.3 million for the quarter ended March 29, 2008 was accordingly reclassified to the depreciation
and amortization line item on the cash flow statement.

Use of Estimates � The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the provision for doubtful accounts,
the provision for excess, obsolete, or slow moving inventories, depreciation and amortization, valuation of intangible assets and long-lived
assets, warranty reserves, income taxes, valuation of stock-based compensation, and contingencies.

Foreign Currency Translation � The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated from their respective local functional currencies at
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and income and expense accounts are translated at average exchange rates during the reporting
period. Resulting translation adjustments are reflected in �accumulated other comprehensive income� a component of stockholders� equity. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are reflected in �Other Income� in the consolidated statements of operations in the period incurred and
consist of a $1.4 million loss for March 28, 2009 and a gain of $0.5 million for March 29, 2008. As of December 27, 2008, we reclassified loans
we had on the books with our Japanese subsidiary from permanent to non-permanent so we could have the subsidiary pay back some of those
loans to bring the cash back to the U.S. Corporate Headquarters to fund working capital worldwide. Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 52, �Foreign Currency Translation� requires that when intercompany loans are no longer considered permanent, any
changes in foreign currency rates for such loans are to be recorded as a period charge on the statement of operations rather than a component in
equity.

As a result of the loan reclassification and substantial weakening of the yen versus the dollar during the quarter, there was a $1.3 million expense
on the statement of operations, $0.8 million of which was �non-cash expense,� as it relates to the remaining outstanding intercompany loan
balance.

Note 2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position EITF 03-6-1, �Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment
Transactions Are Participating Securities� (�FSP EITF 03-6-1�). FSP EITF 03-6-1 addresses whether participating share-based payment awards,
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that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (paid or unpaid) prior to vesting, should be included in the computation
of earnings per share under the two-class method. FSP EITF 03-6-1 will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008. The adoption of this new guidance on December 28, 2008 did not significantly impact our consolidated financial
statements.
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In April 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 142-3, �Determination of the Useful
Life of Intangible Assets�, (�FSP 142-3�) that amends the factors considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine
the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets� (�SFAS 142�). FSP 142-3 requires a consistent approach between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under
SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of an asset under SFAS No. 141 (R), �Business Combinations�
(�SFAS 141R�). The FSP also requires enhanced disclosures when an intangible asset�s expected future cash flows are affected by an entity�s intent
and/or ability to renew or extend the arrangement. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008 and is applied prospectively. Early adoption is prohibited. The adoption of this new guidance on December 28, 2008 did not
impact our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements � an amendment of ARB No.
51. SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards to improve the relevance, comparability and transparency of financial information
that a reporting entity provides in its consolidated financial statements. SFAS 160 became effective December 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAS
160 did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) FAS 157-2, which delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, to fiscal years ending after November 15, 2008 for non-financial assets and liabilities, except those that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. FSP FAS 157-2 became effective November 15, 2008. The adoption of
FSP FAS 157-2 did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161 �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133� (�SFAS 161�). The new standard requires additional disclosures regarding a company�s derivative instruments and hedging
activities by requiring disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a tabular format. It also requires
disclosure of derivative features that are credit risk�related as well as cross-referencing within the notes to the financial statements to enable
financial statement users to locate important information about derivative instruments, financial performance, and cash flows. The standard is
effective for the Company�s fiscal year and interim periods within such year, beginning January 1, 2009, with early application encouraged. The
adoption of this new guidance did not impact our consolidated financial statements as the Company does not have derivative instruments and
does not engage in hedging activities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141R, �Business Combinations� (�SFAS 141R�). SFAS 141R will change the accounting for business
combinations. Under SFAS 141R, an acquiring entity will be required to recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction
at the acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions. SFAS 141R will change the accounting treatment for certain specific items, including,
acquisition costs will generally be expensed as incurred, non-controlling interest will be valued at fair value at the acquisition date, acquired
contingent liabilities will be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and subsequently measured at either the higher of such amount or the
amount determined under existing guidance for non-acquired contingencies, in-process research and development will be recorded at fair value
as an indefinite-lived intangible asset at the acquisition date, restructuring costs associated with a business combination will be generally
expensed subsequent to the acquisition date, and changes in the deferred tax asset valuation allowances and income tax uncertainties after the
acquisition date generally will affect income tax expense. SFAS 141R also includes a substantial number of new disclosure requirements. SFAS
141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008, or the first quarter of 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The adoption of this new guidance
did not impact our consolidated financial statements as there were no business combinations consummated during the first quarter of fiscal year
2009.

Note 3. Acquisitions

On May 19, 2008, Nanometrics announced that it had acquired Tevet Process Control Technologies, Ltd., (�Tevet�) an Israel-based privately held
corporation. The acquisition of Tevet, an integrated metrology company serving the worldwide semiconductor and solar manufacturing industry,
is expected to further Nanometrics� strategy to offer a breadth of process control metrology solutions that address both advanced technology as
well as cost of ownership. Under the terms of the asset purchase agreement, which was an all-cash transaction, the total consideration to
purchase all assets and assume specified liabilities of Tevet was $3.6 million, including $0.2 million in transaction fees, which include legal,
valuation and accounting fees. The asset purchase has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS
141, �Business Combinations�. Under the purchase method of accounting, the total estimated purchase price is allocated to the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets of Tevet acquired in connection with the transaction, based on their respective estimated fair values. The results of
operations of Tevet were included in the Company�s consolidated statements of operations from the date of the acquisition.
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The allocation of the Tevet purchase price is summarized below (in thousands):

Assets acquired:
Cash $ 448
Accounts receivable 12
Inventories 467
Other assets 24
Property, plant and equipment 62

Total assets acquired 1,013

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable 129
Deferred revenue 250
Other accrued liabilities 393

Total liabilities assumed 772

Net assets acquired 241
Goodwill and other intangible assets:
Goodwill 1,848
Developed technology 1,269
Backlog 230

Total goodwill and other intangible assets $ 3,347

Net purchase price $ 3,588

The purchase price of $3.6 million is final as escrow closed on April 7, 2009. No changes to the above allocation occurred as a result of escrow
finalization. The developed technology and backlog are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of seven years and one year,
respectively. In the third quarter of 2008, the company recognized an impairment charge of $54.0 million, representing a write-off of the entire
amount of the Company�s previously recorded goodwill, including the $1.8 million in goodwill arising from the Tevet acquisition. No
impairment of intangible assets from the Tevet acquisition has occurred for the quarter ended March 28, 2009. See Note 4, Goodwill and
Long-Lived Asset Impairment

If the Company had acquired Tevet at the beginning of the three-months period ended March 29, 2008 presented, the Company�s unaudited pro
forma net revenues, net income/loss and net income/loss per share from operations would have been as follows (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Three Months Ended
March 29,

2008
Net revenues $ 35,242
Net income (loss) (1,181)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ (0.06)
Diluted $ (0.06)

Note 4. Goodwill and Long-Lived Asset Impairment

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible net assets acquired in a
business combination. In accordance with SFAS 142 goodwill is reviewed annually or whenever events or circumstances occur which indicate
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that goodwill might be impaired. SFAS 142 provides for a two-step approach to determining whether and by how much goodwill has been
impaired. The first step requires a comparison of the fair value of the Company (reporting units, product and service) to its net book value. If the
fair value is greater, then no impairment is deemed to have occurred. If the fair value is less, then the second step must be performed to
determine the amount, if any, of actual impairment. The process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill is highly subjective and
requires significant judgment.
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Prior to performing step one of the goodwill impairment testing process for a reporting unit under SFAS 142, if there is reason to believe that
other non-goodwill related intangible assets (finite or indefinite lived) and/or long-lived assets may be impaired, these other intangible assets and
long-lived assets must first be tested for impairment under SFAS 144. Assets governed by SFAS 144 require a recoverability test whereby the
gross undiscounted cash flows are determined specific to the asset. If the sum of gross undiscounted cash flows for the fixed-life intangible asset
or long-lived asset exceeds the carrying value of that asset, the test results in no impairment to the asset. If not, then the fair value of the asset
must be determined and the impairment is measured by the differential between the fair value and the carrying value. For non-goodwill related
indefinite-lived assets, a fair value determination is made. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value, then impairment occurs. The
carrying values of these assets are impaired as necessary to provide the appropriate carrying value for the goodwill impairment calculation.

During the second quarter 2008, the Company determined that indicators of impairment existed for our goodwill and long-lived assets. In
accordance with SFAS 144, the Company performed impairment tests to its long-lived assets and goodwill for its reporting units, product and
service. Resulting from this test, the Company determined that there was no impairment of goodwill, however, there was impairment to
intangible assets and other long-lived-assets, therefore the Company recorded a pre-tax, non-cash impairment charge of $11.8 million for
intangible assets and $1.5 million for other long-lived assets.

During the third quarter 2008, as a result of continued significant declines in the Company�s stock price and further evidence of the
semiconductor industry being in a prolonged cyclical downturn, it was determined that indicators of impairment existed for our goodwill and
long-lived assets. In accordance with SFAS 142 and SFAS 144, the Company performed impairment tests to its long-lived assets and goodwill
for its reporting units, product and service. As a result of the testing, the Company recorded a pre-tax, non-cash impairment charge of $54.0
million for goodwill and $1.4 million for intangible assets. The $54.0 million represented 100% impairment of the goodwill balance and that
there was no impairment of other long-lived assets.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of long-lived assets is highly subjective and requires significant judgment. In estimating the
fair value of these assets, the Company made estimates and judgments about future revenues and cash flows. The Company�s forecasts were
based on assumptions that are consistent with the plans and estimates the Company is using to manage the business. Changes in these estimates
could change the Company�s conclusion regarding impairment of the long-lived assets and potentially result in future impairment charges for all
or a portion of their balance at December 27, 2008.

Due to the decline in our forecasted revenues for certain product lines relating to specific intangible assets acquired in the 2006 acquisitions of
Accent Optical Technologies, Inc. and Soluris, Inc., as well as the weakening conditions in the semiconductor equipment market, the Company
performed an analysis in accordance with SFAS 144. The Company performed step one of the impairment test for certain of its long-lived assets
as of June 28, 2008 and September 27, 2008, and determined that the net book value exceeded the undiscounted future cash flows for certain
intangible assets. Accordingly, the Company completed step two of the impairment analysis utilizing a present value technique to estimate the
fair value of the impaired assets. As a result of this analysis, in the second and third quarters of 2008 the Company recorded $13.1 million in
impairment charges for intangible assets, of which $3.7 million was developed technology, $7.5 million was customer relationships, $1.6 million
was brand names and $0.3 million was trade mark.

Also in accordance with SFAS 144, the Company performed impairment tests for other long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment
during 2008. The Company performed an impairment analysis on its long-lived assets associated with its machine shop and plating facility,
which was subcontracted in 2007, due to the significant reduction in forecasted future cash flows resulting from the operational limitations of the
facility. Due to these reduced forecasts, the Company performed step one of the impairment test for the machine shop and plating facility as of
June 28, 2008, and determined that the net book value exceeded the undiscounted future cash flows. Accordingly, the Company completed step
two of the impairment analysis utilizing a present value technique to estimate the fair value of the impaired assets. As a result of this analysis, an
impairment charge of $1.5 million was recorded in the second quarter of 2008 to reduce those assets to fair value. The Company also performed
step one of the impairment test on the remainder of its long lived assets in the second, third, and fourth quarters of 2008, and determined that no
impairment existed.

After considering the results of the intangible and long-lived asset impairments as determined under SFAS 144, the Company then proceeded
with step one of its impairment testing of goodwill under SFAS 142. The Company compared the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying
value and determined whether or not the reporting units were impaired as of June 28, 2008 and September 27, 2008.

9
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In 2008, in estimating the fair value of the Company, the Company made estimates and judgments about future revenues and cash flows for each
reporting unit. To determine the fair value, the Company�s review process included the income method based on a discounted future cash flow
approach that uses estimates including the following for each reporting unit: revenue, based on assumed market growth rates and its assumed
market share; estimated costs; and appropriate discount rates based on the particular business�s weighted average cost of capital. The Company�s
estimates of market segment growth, market segment share and costs are based on historical data, various internal estimates and certain external
sources, and are based on assumptions that are consistent with the plans and estimates it uses to manage the underlying businesses. The
Company�s business consists of both established and emerging technologies and its forecasts for emerging technologies are based upon internal
estimates and external sources rather than historical information. The Company also considered its market capitalization on the dates of its
impairment tests in determining the fair value of the respective businesses. The Company completed the first step of the SFAS 142 test of its
goodwill at June 28, 2008 and determined that the fair value of its reporting units was in excess of the net book value on that date, and hence
there was no impairment of goodwill as of the end of our second quarter 2008.

In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company concluded that events had occurred and circumstances had changed during the third quarter of 2008
which might indicate the existence of impairment indicators including a significant decline in the Company�s stock price and continued
deterioration in the semiconductor equipment market and the related impact on revenue forecasts of each reporting unit. Consistent with the
Company�s approach in its annual impairment testing, in assessing the fair value of the reporting unit, the Company considered both the market
approach and income approach. Under the market approach, the fair value of the reporting unit is based on quoted market prices and the number
of shares outstanding of the Company�s common stock. Under the income approach, the fair value of the reporting unit is based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows. At September 27, 2008, the Company determined that the fair value of its reporting units was less than the
net book value of the net assets of each reporting unit and accordingly, the Company performed step two of the impairment test.

In step two of the impairment test, the Company determined the implied fair value of the goodwill and compared it to the carrying value of the
goodwill. With the assistance of a third party valuation firm, the Company allocated the fair value of the reporting units to all of its assets and
liabilities as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting units was the price paid to
acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amount assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied
fair value of goodwill. The Company�s step two analysis resulted in no implied fair value of goodwill, and therefore, the Company recognized an
impairment charge of $54.0 million in the third quarter of 2008, representing a write-off of the entire amount of the Company�s previously
recorded goodwill including goodwill from the Tevet acquisition which was a part of the impaired reporting units.

10
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Note 5. Restructuring Charge

The Company recorded an additional $0.7 million restructuring charge for the first quarter ended March 28, 2009, which was fully paid during
the quarter. $0.1 million of reserve outstanding as of December 27, 2008 was also paid during the quarter.

In the first quarter of 2009, we reduced the global workforce further by 51 employees and recorded a restructuring charge of $0.7 million.

During fiscal year 2008, the Company reduced its global work force by approximately 61 employees. This reduction affected employees in each
of the Company�s locations worldwide and is aimed at reducing its operating expenses.

Other
Charges

Severance and
Other

Benefits Total
Restructuring charges � First Quarter of 2008 $ 84 $ 786 $ 870
Restructuring charges � Second Quarter of 2008 655 655
Cash paid (84) (1,361) (1,445)

Reserve balance at December 27, 2008 $ �  $ 80 $ 80

Reserve balance at December 27, 2008 $ �  $ 80 $ 80
Restructuring charges � First Quarter of 2009 �  $ 689 $ 689
Cash paid �  (769) (769)

Reserve balance at March 28, 2009 $ �  $ �  $ �  

Note 6. Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains arrangements under which eligible accounts and notes receivable are sold without recourse to unrelated third-party
financial institutions. These receivables were not included in the consolidated balance sheets as the criteria for sale treatment established by
SFAS No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,� (�SFAS 140�) had been met. Under
SFAS 140, after a transfer of financial assets, an entity stops recognizing the financial assets when the control has been surrendered. The
Company�s sale of accounts receivable met the criteria of a true sale of these assets since the acquiring party retained the title to these receivables
and had assumed the risk that the receivables will be collectible. The Company pays administrative fees as well as interest at rates ranging from
1.48 % to 1.74% based on the anticipated length of time between the date the sale is consummated and the expected collection date of the
receivables sold. The Company sold $1.9 million and $6.7 million of receivables, respectively, during the three-month ended March 28, 2009,
and March 29, 2008. There were no material gains or losses on the sale of such receivables. There were no amounts due from the financial
institutions at March 28, 2009 and December 27, 2008.

Note 7. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis), or market and consist of the
following (in thousands):

March 28,
2009

December 27,
2008

Raw materials and sub-assemblies $ 19,403 $ 19,113
Work in process 1,648 3,662
Finished goods 11,546 8,808

Total inventories $ 32,597 $ 31,583
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We reflect the cost of systems that were invoiced upon shipment but deferred for revenue recognition purposes separate from our inventory held
for sale as �Inventories�delivered systems.�

Note 8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

March 28,
2009

December 27,
2008

Land $ 15,577 $ 15,577
Building and improvements 20,902 20,973
Machinery and equipment 15,097 15,427
Furniture and fixtures 2,532 2,142
Capital in progress 2,930 2,940

57,038 57,059
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (17,520) (16,923)

Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 39,518 $ 40,136

Note 9. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with an indefinite life are evaluated annually for impairment or whenever events or circumstances occur which indicate that
those assets might be impaired. On March 15, 2006, as a result of the Company�s acquisition of Soluris Inc., the Company acquired a trademark
with a value of $0.4 million with an indefinite life. During the first quarter of 2008, the Company determined the trademark no longer had an
indefinite life. Accordingly, a remaining life of five years was assigned and the Company began amortization of the finite-lived intangible asset.

During the second quarter of 2008, the Company added $1.5 million of finite-lived assets through its acquisition of Tevet. Finite-lived intangible
assets are recorded at cost, less accumulated amortization. Finite-lived intangible assets as of March 28, 2009 and December 27, 2008 consist of
the following (in thousands):

Original
Amount

(A)
Impairment

and Tax
Adjustment

Adjusted
Basis

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

March 28, 2009
Developed technology $ �  $ �  $ 7,319 $ (3,359) $ 3,960
Customer relationships �  �  8,183 (6,449) 1,734
Brand names �  �  1,927 (1,123) 804
Patented technology �  �  1,790 (1,790) �  
Trademark �  �  80 (46) 34
Backlog �  �  3,361 (3,361) �  
Non-compete agreement �  �  50 (50) �  
Other �  �  250 (250) �  

Total $ �  $ �  $ 22,960 $ (16,428) $ 6,532
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Original
Amount

(A)
Impairment

and Tax
Adjustment

Adjusted
Basis

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

December 27, 2008
Developed technology $ 11,069 $ (3,750) $ 7,319 $ (3,147) $ 4,172
Customer relationships 15,700 (7,517) 8,183 (6,330) 1,853
Brand names 3,600 (1,673) 1,927 (1,087) 840
Patented technology 1,790 �  1,790 (1,790) �  
Trademark 400 (320) 80 (44) 36
Backlog 3,361 �  3,361 (3,361) �  
Non-compete agreement 50 �  50 (50) �  
Other 250 �  250 (250) �  

Total $     36,220 $ (13,260) $     22,960 $ (16,059) $     6,901

(A) Amounts include impairments charges recorded in the second and third quarters of 2008 of $11.8 million and $1.3 million, respectively
and tax adjustment of $0.2 million in the third quarter of 2008.

The amortization of finite-lived intangibles is computed using the straight-line method except for customer relationships which is computed
using an accelerated method. Estimated lives of finite-lived intangibles range from five to ten years, except for the non-compete agreement and
backlog which were amortized over one year. Total amortization expense for the three-month periods ended March 28, 2009 and March 29,
2008 was $0.4 million and $1.4 million respectively.

The estimated future amortization expense as of March 28, 2009 is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Years
2009 (remaining nine months) $ 981
2010 1,267
2011 1,108
2012 972
2013 811
Thereafter 1,393

Total amortization $     6,532

Note 10. Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

March 28,
2009

December 27,
2008

Accrued warranty $ 1,436 $ 2,075
Accrued professional services 858 883
Other 1,991 2,842

Total other current liabilities $        4,285 $ 5,800
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Note 11. Debt Obligations

Debt obligations consist of the following (in thousands):

March 28,
2009

December 27
2008

Milpitas building mortgage $ 13,319 $ 13,400
Equipment financing 66 96

Total debt obligations 13,385 13,496
Current portion of debt obligations (390) (413)

Long-term debt obligations $      12,995 $ 13,083

In July 2008, the Company entered into a loan agreement pursuant to which we borrowed $13.5 million. The loan initially bears interest at the
rate of 7.18% per annum, which rate will be reset after five years to 3.03% over the then weekly average yield of five-year U.S. Dollar Interest
Rate Swaps as published by the Federal Reserve. Monthly principal and interest payments are based on a twenty year amortization for the first
sixty months and fifteen year amortization thereafter. The remaining principal balance of the loan and any accrued but unpaid interest will be
due on August 1, 2018. The loan is secured, in part, by a lien on and security interest in the building and land comprising of the Company�s
principal offices in Milpitas, California.

The equipment financing was obtained in November 2006 by the Company�s subsidiary in the United Kingdom and is collateralized by the
financed assets. The loan is denominated in British pounds sterling (£45,679 as of March 28, 2009) and bears interest at 5.53% per annum. The
loan is payable in monthly installments with unpaid principal and interest due in November 2009.

The Company is not in breach of any restrictive covenants in connection with its debt. At March 28, 2009, future annual maturities of debt
obligations were as follows (in thousands):

2009 (remaining nine months) $ 302
2010 343
2011 368
2012 396
2013 426
Thereafter 11,550

Total $       13,385

Note 12. Stockholders� Equity

Net Loss Per Share�Basic net loss per shares excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average common shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted net loss per share reflects the potential dilution from outstanding dilutive stock options (using the treasury
stock method) shares issuable under the employee stock purchase plan. During the first quarter of 2009 and comparable quarter last year, diluted
net loss per shares excludes common equivalent shares outstanding as their effect is anti-dilutive. The total number of common equivalent shares
includes stock options with exercise prices, in excess of the fair market value of our common stock, which are always excluded from diluted
weighted average shares outstanding, as their effect is anti-dilutive. The reconciliation of the share denominator used in the basic and diluted net
loss per share computations is as follows (in thousands):

Three-Months Ended
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March 28,
2009

March 29,
2008

Weighted average common shares outstanding used in basic net loss per share computation 18,415 18,590

Shares used in diluted net loss per share computation 18,415 18,590
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For the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008, the Company had securities outstanding which could potentially dilute
basic earnings per share in the future, which were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share in the periods presented as their
impact would have been anti-dilutive. Weighted average common share equivalents, consisting of stock options excluded from the calculation of
diluted net loss per share were 3.5 million and 2.8 million in the three months period ended March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008, respectively.

During the third fiscal quarter of 2007, the Company�s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program pursuant to which the Company
may repurchase up to $4.0 million shares of its common stock. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, the Company did not repurchase
common shares in the open market. For the same period last year the Company had repurchased 43,650 common shares at an average price of
$6.45 per share. At March 28, 2009, $1.3 million remained available for the future purchase of shares of common

Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to the Company�s employees and directors pursuant to the
employee stock option and employee stock purchase plans under SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment�, (�SFAS 123(R)�) is as
follows (in thousands):

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Cost of products $ (81) $ 37
Cost of service 36 54
Research and development (22) 137
Selling 145 156
General and administrative 240 534

Total stock-based compensation expense related to employee stock options and employee stock
purchase plans $ 318 $ 918

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model and the assumptions noted in the
following table. The expected term of options granted was calculated using the simplified method allowed by Staff Accounting Bulletin 107,
extended by Staff Accounting Bulletin 110. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates in effect during the corresponding period of
grant. The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of Nanometrics� stock price. The dividend yield reflects that the Company has
not paid any cash dividends since inception and does not intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Stock Options
Expected life 4.3 years 4.4 years
Volatility 61.2% 56.0%
Risk free interest rate 1.75% 2.92%
Dividends �  �  
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Expected life 0.5 years 0.5 years
Volatility 89.6% 35.0%
Risk free interest rate 0.94% 2.52%
Dividends �  �  

The weighted average fair value per share of the stock options awarded in the three month periods ended March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008
was $0.61 and $2.90, respectively, based on the fair market value of the Company�s common stock on the grant dates.
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A summary of activity under the Company�s stock option plans during the three-months ended March 28, 2009 is as follows:

Shares
Available

(Options and RSUs�)

Number
of

Shares
(Options)

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term
(Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value (in

Thousands)
Options
Outstanding at December 27, 2008 1,665,043 3,562,437 $ 7.29 5.1 $ 176
Shares added through 2005 Option Plan �  �  
Exercised �  (150)
Granted (145,500) 145,500
Restricted Stock Units Allocation (14,000) �  
Cancelled (1) 148,981 (149,167)

Outstanding at March 28, 2009 1,654,524 3,558,620 $ 6.93 5.0 $ 339

Exercisable at March 28, 2009 1,794,246 $ 9.80 3.8 $ 30

1 A total of 186 shares expired and was put back into the pool of shares available.
During the three-month period ended March 28, 2009, the Company granted 14,000 Restricted Stock Units (�RSUs�) with vesting periods of three
years. As of March 28, 2009, there were 59,331 Restricted Stock Units outstanding. The Company�s vesting of Restricted Stock Units, would
vest one-third of the grant on the one year anniversary of the Vesting Commencement date and an additional one-third of the Restricted Stock
Units vesting each annual anniversary thereafter for a total of three-year vesting. Prior to December 2008, the majority for options granted by the
Compensation Committee vested at a rate of 33 1/3 percent over the first three years of the seven-year option term on each of the first, second
and third anniversary of such grants. Starting in December 2008, the majority of the options granted for employees employed for less than one
year vest one-third (1/3rd) of the shares subject to the option on the first anniversary of the grant date, and vest one thirty sixth (1/36th) each
month for the following two years, for a total three year vesting period with a seven-year option term. Starting in November 2008, the majority
of the options granted for employees employed for more than one year vest one thirty-sixth (1/36th) of the shares subject to the options in equal
monthly installments starting on the monthly anniversary of the date of grant with a seven-year option term.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on the Company�s closing stock price of
$1.33 as of March 27, 2009, which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that date.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the three-month periods ended March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008 was immaterial. The
fair value of options vested for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 was $1.3 million and for the three month period ended March 29,
2008 was $1.7 million.

Note 14. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company�s comprehensive income (loss) was as follows (in thousands):

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Net loss $ (10,628) $ (724)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax 47 858

Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (10,581) $ 134
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Note 15. Warranties

Product Warranty � The Company sells the majority of its products with a 12-month repair or replacement warranty from the date of acceptance
which generally represents the date of shipment. The Company provides an accrual for estimated future warranty costs based upon the historical
relationship of warranty costs to the cost of products sold. The estimated future warranty obligations related to product sales are recorded in the
period in which the related revenue is recognized. The estimated future warranty obligations are affected by the warranty periods, sales volumes,
product failure rates, material usage, and labor and replacement costs incurred in correcting a product failure. If actual product failure rates,
material usage, labor or replacement costs differ from the Company�s estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty obligations would be
required. For new product introductions where limited or no historical information exists, the Company may use warranty information from
other previous product introductions to guide it in estimating its warranty accrual. The warranty accrual represents the best estimate of the
amount necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet date. The Company periodically assesses the
adequacy of its reported warranty reserve and adjusts the amounts in accordance with changes in these factors. Components of the warranty
accrual, which was included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets with other current liabilities, were as follows (in thousands):

March 28,
2009

March 29,
2008

Balance as of beginning of period $ 2,075 $ 4,545
Actual warranty costs (766) (1,759)
Provision for warranty 127 1,056

Balance as of end of period $ 1,436 $ 3,842

Intellectual Property Indemnification Obligations � In addition to product warranties, the Company will, from time to time, in the normal course
of business, agree to indemnify certain customers with whom it enters into contractual relationships. The Company has agreed to hold these
customers harmless against third party claims that Nanometrics� products, when used for their intended purpose(s), infringe the intellectual
property rights of such third parties or other claims made against the customer. It is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount of
liability under these indemnification obligations due to the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and
circumstances that are likely to be involved in each particular claim. Historically, the Company has not made payments under these obligations
and believes that the estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly, no liabilities have been recorded for these obligations in
the accompanying unaudited consolidated balance sheets as of March 28, 2009 and December 27, 2008.

Note 16. Income Taxes

The income tax benefit of $19,000 for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 was the result of foreign tax benefit of $39,000 offset by
$20,000 in state tax expense.

The income tax provision of $0.3 million for the three-month period ended March 29, 2008 was the result of foreign taxes of $0.2 million offset
by $0.1 million of tax benefit in a certain foreign jurisdiction where sufficient deferred tax liabilities exist to allow for benefiting the operating
loss. In addition, the Company recorded a charge of $0.2 million related to a potential tax exposure in a foreign jurisdiction.

Note 17. Contingencies

In August 2005, KLA-Tencor Corporation (�KLA�) filed a complaint against the Company in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California. The complaint alleges that certain of the Company�s products infringe two of KLA�s patents. On January 30, 2006, KLA
added a third patent to their claim. The complaint seeks a preliminary and permanent injunction against the sale of these products as well as the
recovery of monetary damages and attorneys� fees. As part of its defense, the Company has filed a request for re-examination of two of the
allegedly infringed KLA patents with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office (�PTO�). In March 2006, the Company filed a motion for and was
granted a stay in the patent litigation case until such re-examination is completed. On July 28, 2008, the PTO issued a Notice of Intent to issue a
Reexamination Certificate for one of the KLA patents. The other two patent reexaminations remain pending. In all three of the reexamination
proceedings, the PTO has issued Office Actions rejecting numerous claims and KLA has amended the claims in response.
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Note 18. Geographic and Significant Customer Information

The Company has one operating segment, as defined in SFAS No. 131, �Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information�.
The Company�s operating segment is the sale, design, manufacture, marketing and support of thin film, optical critical dimension and overlay
dimension metrology systems. The following table summarizes total net revenues and long-lived assets (excluding intangible assets) attributed to
significant countries (in thousands):

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Total net revenues:
United States $ 2,265 $ 11,837
Japan 4,752 8,863
South Korea 453 5,401
Taiwan 218 1,159
China 325 4,445
Europe 1,666 1,097
All other 378 1,926

Total net revenues* $ 10,057 $ 34,728

* Net revenues are attributed to countries based on the deployment and service locations of systems.

March 28,
2009

December 27,
2008

Long lived assets
United States $ 35,143 $ 35,322
Japan 974 1,138
South Korea 3,650 3,853
Taiwan 90 102
Europe 997 1,152
China 15 17
All Other 247 270

Total long lived assets** $ 41,116 $ 41,854

** Long-lived assets include tangible assets only.
The following customers accounted for 10% or more of total accounts receivable:

Period Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Hynix Semiconductor, Inc. 27.3% 17.6%
Xinxin Semiconductor, Inc. *** 10.2%
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*** The customer accounted for less than 10% of total accounts receivable during the period.
The following customers accounted for 10% or more of total revenue:

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd. **** 20.6%
Toshiba 14.4% ****

**** The customer accounted for less than 10% of revenue during the period.
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Note 19. Subsequent Events

Korea Facility Closure � The Company is in the process of closing the manufacturing facility in Korea. Items currently manufactured in Korea
will be manufactured in other locations, or, in some instances, may no longer be manufactured. The Company is also planning to sell the
manufacturing facility in Korea as soon as practical. The financial impact of the closure is unknown at this time but will be reflected in the
financials for the period ended June 27, 2009.

The carrying value of the property, plant and equipment on the books of the Korean subsidiary at the end of March 28, 2009 was $2.8 million.

Line of Credit Renewal � On May 11, 2009, the Company and Comerica, executed the second amendment to the revolving credit facility at
essentially the same terms as before, which now extends the facility to April 30, 2011. The second amendment was executed on May 11, 2009,
with an effective date of April 29, 2009. All borrowings under this second amendment bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the bank�s prime
rate, or at the LIBOR rate plus 2.75% with a minimum borrowing rate of 5.25% per annum.

Force Reduction � During the second quarter of 2009, the Company intends to reduce its workforce by 28 people, including 12 people in Korea
associated with the closing on the Korea manufacturing facility as mentioned above. The company will record a restructuring charge in second
quarter of fiscal year 2009 associated with this activity.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The statements contained in this
document that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including, without limitation, statements regarding our expectations, beliefs, intentions or
strategies regarding our business in future periods. We may identify these statements by the use of words such as �anticipate,� �believe,� �continue,�
�could,� �estimate,� �expect,� �intend,� �may,� �might,� �plan,� �potential,� �predict,� �project,� �should,� �will,� �would� and other similar expressions. All
forward-looking statements included in this document are based on information available to us on the date hereof, and we assume no obligation
to update any such forward-looking statements, except as may otherwise be required by law.

Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain risk factors, including
those set forth in Part II Item 1A �Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this document. In evaluating our business, current and prospective investors
should carefully consider these factors in addition to the other information set forth in this document. We believe that it is important to
communicate our expectations to our investors. However, there may be events in the future that we are not able to predict accurately or over
which we have no control. You should be aware that the occurrence of the events described in such risk factors and elsewhere in this report as
well as other risks and uncertainties could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition. While
management believes that the discussion and analysis in this report is adequate for a fair presentation of the information presented, we
recommend that you read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the (i) audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for
the year December 27, 2008 which were included in our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities Exchange Commission on
March 27, 2009 and (ii) our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Overview

The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature and has historically experienced periodic downturns and upturns. Today�s leading indicators of
changes in customer investment patterns may not be any more reliable than in prior years. Demand for our equipment can vary significantly
from period to period as a result of various factors, requirements, and our ability to develop, acquire, and market competitive products. For these
and other reasons, our current results of operations may not necessarily be indicative of future operating results.

We are an innovator in the field of metrology systems for the semiconductor manufacturing and other industries. Our systems are designed to
precisely monitor film thickness and critical dimensions that are necessary to control the manufacturing process and provide increased
production yields and performance.

Capital expenditures by manufacturers of semiconductors, especially in Asia, are critical to our success. Purchases of our systems by these
manufacturers are driven by the expected market demand for their new products and new applications. The increasing complexity of the
manufacturing processes for semiconductors is an important factor in the demand for our innovative metrology systems, as are the adoption of
optical critical dimension (OCD) metrology across fabrication processes, adoption of immersion lithography and double patterning, adoption of
new types of thin film materials and the need for improved process control to drive process efficiencies. Our strategy is to continue to innovate
organically as well to evaluate strategic acquisitions in order to address business challenges and opportunities.

Our revenues are primarily derived from product sales but are also derived from customer service and system upgrades for the installed base of
our products. In 2008, we derived 74.0% of our total net revenues from product sales and 26.0% of our total net revenues from services.

Important Themes and Significant Trends

The semiconductor industry is characterized by cyclical growth. Changing trends in the semiconductor industry continue to drive the need for
metrology as major component of manufacturing systems. These trends include;

� Adoption of Optical Critical Dimension Metrology across Fabrication Processes. Our customers use photolithographic processes
to create patterns on wafers. Critical dimensions must be carefully controlled during this process. In advanced node device definition,
additional monitoring of thickness and profile dimensions on these patterned structures at CMP, Etch, and Thin Film processing is
driving broader OCD adoption. Our proprietary OCD systems can provide the critical process control of these circuit dimensions that
is necessary for successful manufacturing of these state of the art devices.
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� Adoption of Immersion Lithography and Development of Double Patterning for Critical Photolithographic Layers. In an
effort to reduce costs and increase device performance, semiconductor manufacturers are decreasing both the die size and feature
size. Both immersion processing and double patterning techniques are being implemented to achieve the requisite device linear
dimension and density. The additional rigors of these technologies increase the burden on overlay and registration capability as well
as critical dimension monitoring and control. These techniques are shrinking total available process windows faster than the scaling
predicted by Moore�s Law, resulting in the need for additional metrology and process control for both overlay and OCD systems.

� Adoption of New Types of Thin Film Materials. The need for ever increasing device circuit speed coupled with lower power
consumption has pushed semiconductor device manufacturers to begin the replacement of the traditional aluminum etch back
interconnect flows as well as conventional gate dielectric materials, all which drive a broader adoption of thin film and OCD
metrology systems. To achieve greater semiconductor device speed, manufacturers have adopted copper in Logic/IDM and it is now
proliferating in next generation DRAM and Flash nodes. Additionally, to achieve improved transistor performance in logic devices
and higher cell densities in memory devices, new materials including high dielectric constant (or high-k) gate materials are
increasingly being substituted for traditional silicon-oxide gate dielectric materials. High-k materials are comprised of complex thin
films including layers of hafnium oxide and a bi-layer of thin film metals. Our advanced metrology solutions are required for
thickness control of these layers, which is critical to enable the device performance improvements that these new materials allow.

� Need for Improved Process Control to Drive Process Efficiencies. Competitive forces influencing semiconductor device
manufacturers, such as price-cutting and shorter product life cycles, place pressure on manufacturers to rapidly achieve production
efficiency. Device manufacturers are using our integrated and standalone metrology systems throughout the fab to ensure that
manufacturing processes scale rapidly, are accurate and can be repeated on a consistent basis.

� Reduced Number of Customers. Because of the escalating cost of 300mm manufacturing facilities, fewer semiconductor
manufacturers can afford the significant investment in these next generation facilities. Therefore, fewer opportunities for
semiconductors equipment companies exist. Given that the available number of potential customers is decreasing, pre-existing
customer relationships, product positioning and critical mass take on greater importance.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements conforms to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which
requires management to make estimates and judgments in applying our accounting policies that have an important impact on our reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures at the date of our financial statements. On an on-going basis,
management evaluates its estimates including those related to bad debts, inventory valuations, warranty obligations and income taxes.
Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from management�s estimates. We believe that the application of the following accounting
policies requires significant judgments and estimates on the part of management.

Revenue Recognition � We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been
rendered, the seller�s price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Product revenue includes hardware and also software
that is incidental to the products as defined pursuant to AICPA Statement of Position (�SOP�) No. 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition. We derive
revenue from three sources�sales of process control metrology systems, spare part sales and, in certain arrangements, separately stated service
contracts. Service revenue includes product upgrades. Our arrangements for sales of our systems often include customer-specified objective
acceptance criteria. Our systems include hardware and software that is incidental to the system. We periodically review the software element of
our equipment systems in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position (�SOP�) No. 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, and Emerging Issues
Task Force (�EITF�) Issue No. 03-05, Applicability of SOP 97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an Arrangement Containing
More-than-Incidental Software, to ascertain that the software continues to be incidental.
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For product sales to existing customers, revenue recognition occurs at the time title and risk of loss transfer, which usually occurs upon delivery,
if we have reliably demonstrated that the product has successfully met the defined customer specified criteria, and all other recognition criteria
has been met. This occurs at the time of shipment, as our terms are FOB shipping point. For initial sales of product where we have not
previously met the defined customer acceptance criteria, product revenues are recognized upon the earlier of receipt of written customer
acceptance or expiration of the contractual acceptance period. In Japan, where our contractual terms with the customer specify risk of loss and
title transfers upon customer acceptance, revenue is recognized upon receipt of written customer acceptance, provided all other recognition
criteria have been met.

All of our products are assembled prior to shipment to our customers. We often perform installation for our customers; however such installation
is inconsequential and perfunctory as it may also be performed by third parties and is not considered essential to the functionality of the
equipment. Revenue related to spare parts sales is recognized upon shipment and is included as part of service revenue. Service revenue also
includes service contracts, spare parts, and non-warranty and billable repairs of systems, and product upgrades. Whereas service revenue related
to service contracts is recognized ratably over the period under contract, service revenue related to billable repairs of systems is recognized as
services are performed and service parts are delivered. On occasion, customers request a warranty period longer than our standard 12 month
warranty. In those instances where extended warranty services are separately quoted to the customer, we follow the guidance of Financial
Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 90-1, �Accounting for Separately Priced Extended Warranty and Product Maintenance
Contracts,� associated revenue is deferred and recognized to income ratably over the term of the contract. Unearned maintenance and service
contract revenue is included in deferred revenue. Furthermore, generally we do not provide our customers with any return rights.

The guidance in EITF No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables, is considered in cases where certain elements of a sales
arrangement are not delivered and accepted at the same time. In such cases, we defer the relative fair value of the undelivered element until that
element is delivered and accepted by the customer. In order to recognize revenue associated with delivered elements, the following criteria must
be met: (a) the delivered item(s) has value to the customer on a standalone basis; (b) there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of
the undelivered item(s); and (c) delivery or performance of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in our control. If the
arrangement does not meet all the above criteria, the entire amount of the sales contract is deferred until the criteria have been met or all
elements have been delivered to the customer. Objective and reliable evidence of the fair value is based on the amounts for which we sell
equivalent products or services on a standalone basis. Upon recognition of product revenue, a liability is recorded for anticipated warranty costs.
Service contracts may be purchased by the customer during or after the warranty period.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts � We maintain allowances for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required
payments. Credit limits are established through a process of reviewing the financial history and stability of our customers. Where appropriate
and available, we obtain credit rating reports and financial statements of customers when determining or modifying their credit limits. We
regularly evaluate the collectability of our trade receivable balances based on a combination of factors such as the length of time the receivables
are past due, customary payment practices in the respective geographies and our historical collection experience with customers. We believe that
our allowance for doubtful accounts reflects our risk associated with smaller rather than larger customers and that our reported allowances are
adequate. If however, the financial conditions of customers were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make payments, we would assess
the necessity to record additional allowances which would result in additional general and administrative expenses being recorded for the period
in which such determination was made.

Inventories � Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis), or market. We are
exposed to a number of economic and industry factors that could result in portions of our inventory becoming either obsolete or in excess of
anticipated usage, or saleable only for amounts that are less than their carrying amounts. These factors include, but are not limited to,
technological changes in our market, our ability to meet changing customer requirements, competitive pressures in products and prices, and the
availability of key components from our suppliers. We have established inventory reserves when conditions exist that suggest that our inventory
may be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon our assumptions about future demand for our products and market conditions.
We regularly evaluate our ability to realize the value of our inventory based on a combination of factors including the following: historical usage
rates, forecasted sales of usage, product end-of-life dates, estimated current and future market values and new product introductions. For
demonstration inventory, we also consider the age of the inventory and potential cost to refurbish the inventory prior to sale. Demonstration
inventory is amortized over its useful life and the amortization expense is included in total depreciation and amortization on our cash flow
statement. When recorded, our reserves are intended to reduce the carrying value of our inventory to its net realizable value. If actual demand for
our products deteriorates, or market conditions are less favorable than those that we project, additional reserves may be required.

22

Edgar Filing: NANOMETRICS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 35



Table of Contents

Inventories � delivered systems � We reflect the cost of systems that were invoiced upon shipment but deferred for revenue recognition purposes
separate from our inventory held for sale as �Inventories�delivered systems�.

Product Warranties � We sell the majority of our products with a twelve-month repair or replacement warranty from the date of acceptance which
generally represents the date of shipment. We provide an accrual for estimated future warranty costs based upon the historical relationship of
warranty costs to the cost of products sold. The estimated future warranty obligations related to product sales are reported in the period in which
the related revenue is recognized. The estimated future warranty obligations are affected by the warranty periods, sales volumes, product failure
rates, material usage and labor and replacement costs incurred in correcting a product failure. If actual product failure rates, material usage, labor
or replacement costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty obligations would be required. For new product introductions
where limited or no historical information exists, we may use warranty information from other previous product introductions to guide us in
estimating our warranty accrual. The warranty accrual represents the best estimate of the amount necessary to settle future and existing claims on
products sold as of the balance sheet date. We periodically assess the adequacy of our recorded warranty reserve and adjust the amounts in
accordance with changes in these factors.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets � Goodwill is initially recorded when the purchase price paid for an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value
of the net identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 142, �Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets� (�SFAS 142�), intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful lives while goodwill and indefinite lived
assets are not amortized but tested annually for impairment. Our impairment review process is completed as of the last day of November of each
year or whenever events or circumstances occur which indicate that an impairment might have occurred. SFAS 142 provides for a two-step
approach to determining whether and how much goodwill has been impaired. The first step requires a comparison of the fair value of
Nanometrics� reporting units (product and service) to its net book value. If the fair value is greater, then no impairment is deemed to have
occurred. If the fair value is less, then the second step must be performed to determine the amount, if any, of actual impairment.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill is highly subjective and requires significant judgment. In estimating the fair
value of Nanometrics, we make estimates and judgments about future revenues and cash flows for each reporting unit. To determine the fair
value, our review process includes the income method and is based on a discounted future cash flow approach that uses estimates including the
following for each reporting unit: revenue, based on assumed market growth rates and our assumed market share; estimated costs; and
appropriate discount rates based on the particular business� weighted average cost of capital. Our estimates of market segment growth, our market
segment share and costs are based on historical data, various internal estimates and certain external sources, and are based on assumptions that
are consistent with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying businesses. Our business consists of both established and
emerging technologies and our forecasts for emerging technologies are based upon internal estimates and external sources rather than historical
information. We also consider our market capitalization on the dates of our impairment tests in determining the fair value of the respective
businesses. As part of the second step in determining the amount of goodwill impairment, if any, we allocate the fair value of the reporting units
to all of its assets and liabilities as if the reporting units had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting units was
the price paid to acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of each reporting unit over the amount assigned to its assets and
liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. When impairment is deemed to have occurred, we will recognize an impairment charge to reduce
the carrying amount of our goodwill to its implied fair value.

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities � We account for income taxes based on SFAS 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes�, whereby deferred tax
assets and liabilities must be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and tax accounting for
assets and liabilities. Also, deferred tax assets must be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized in the future. We evaluate the deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine whether or not a valuation
allowance is appropriate. Factors used in this determination include future expected income and the underlying asset or liability which generated
the temporary tax difference. Our income tax provision is primarily impacted by federal statutory rates, state and foreign income taxes and
changes in our valuation allowance.

Stock-Based Compensation � In accordance with 123(R), �Share based payment�, the Company estimates the value of employee stock options
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. The determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an
option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These
variables include, but are not limited to the expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, and actual and projected employee stock
option exercise behaviors. The expected term of options granted is calculated based on the simplified method allowed by Staff Accounting
Bulletin 107 and extended by Staff Accounting Bulletin 110. The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of our stock price.

23

Edgar Filing: NANOMETRICS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 36



Table of Contents

Restructuring Charge � During 2008 and 2007, we implemented a restructuring program based on our business strategy and recorded significant
accruals in connection with the restructuring program. In connection with the plan we have recorded estimated expenses for severance and other
costs. In accordance with SFAS 146, �Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities�, generally costs associated with
restructuring activities have been recognized when they are incurred rather than the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. In addition
post-employment benefits accrued for workforce reductions related to restructuring activities are accounted for under SFAS 112, �Employer�s
Accounting Post-Employment Benefits�. A liability for post-employment benefits is recorded when payment is probable, the amount is reasonably
estimable, and the obligation relates to rights that have vested or accumulated. Given the significance and complexity of restructuring activities,
and the timing of the execution of such activities, the restructuring process involves periodic reassessments of the estimates made at the time the
original decisions were made, including evaluating market conditions for expected disposals of assets and vacancy of space. Although we
believe that these estimates accurately reflect the costs of the restructuring programs, actual results may vary or differ, thereby requiring us to
record additional provisions or reverse a portion of such provisions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 of the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of recent accounting pronouncements, including the respective
dates of adoption and effects on results of operations and financial condition.
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Results of Operations

Periods ended March 28, 2009 and March 29, 2008

Total net revenues. Our net revenues were comprised of the following categories:

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008 Change
Percentage

Change
Automated Metrology $ 779 $ 10,209 $ (9,430) (92.4)%
Integrated Systems 965 4,891 (3,926) (80.3)%
Material Characterization 3,196 12,829 (9,633) (75.0)%

Total Product Revenue 4,940 27,929 (22,989) (82.3)%
Service 5,117 6,799 (1,682) (24.7)%

Total Net Revenues $ 10,057 $ 34,728 (24,671) (71.0)%

For the three month period ended March 28, 2009, net revenues from automated metrology decreased by $9.4 million from the comparable
period of 2008 and net revenues from our integrated systems decreased $3.9 million from the comparable period of 2008 and net revenues from
our material characterization decreased by $9.6 million from comparable period of 2008. The overall decrease in product revenue of 82.3% is
reflective of global reductions in capital spending by the majority of the semiconductor manufacturers.

Service revenue decreased by $1.7 million during period ended March 28, 2009 over the comparable periods of 2008 due to a decrease of
in-the-field tool upgrades and lower demand for billable service and spare parts.

Gross margins. Our gross margin breakdown was as follows (in percent):

Three-Months Ended
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Products 25.2% 51.1%
Services 31.3% 23.0%

The product gross margin for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 of 25.2% decreased significantly from 51.1% from the comparable
period of 2008. This was as a result of under absorption of overhead costs coupled with higher material variances.

The gross margin for our services line of business increased to 31.3% for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 as compared to gross
margins of 23.0% for the comparable period of 2008. The increase in gross margin reflects a higher level of in-the-field tool upgrades and
increased efforts on billable service and spare parts sales and our focus on controlling service expenses including personnel, personnel related
expenses and material costs as compared to 2008.
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Operating expenses. Our operating expenses were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Three-Months Ended

Change
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Research and development $ 3,239 $ 4,255 $ (1,016) (23.9)%
Selling 3,615 4,839 (1,224) (25.3)%
General and administrative 3,972 5,524 (1,552) (28.1)%
Amortization of intangible assets 369 1,285 (916) (71.3)%
Restructuring charge 689 870 (181) (20.8)%

Total operating expenses $ 11,884 $ 16,773 $ (4,889) (29.1)%

Research and development. Research and development expenses decreased by $1.0 million for the three-month periods ended March 28, 2009
over the comparable period in 2008 due to lower product development expenses such as payroll, benefits and stock�based compensation resulting
from 18 fewer employees totaling $0.9 million combined with lower travelling expenses of $0.1 million.

Selling. Selling expenses decreased by $1.2 million for the three- month period ended March 28, 2009 as compared to the corresponding period
of 2008 due primarily to lower personnel and related expenses of $0.4 bonuses not paid by subsidiaries of $0.1 million, lower level of
commission resulting from lower revenues of $0.3 million, one-time expenses for recruiting fees of $0.1 million, travel and trade show expenses
of $ 0.3 million.

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased by $1.6 million for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009
with the comparable period in 2008. The decrease was due primarily to lower employee costs of $1.0 million, state taxes of $0.2 million,
professional services for compliance of $0.3 million and the remaining $0.1 million to expenses attributable to travelling, facilities allocation and
general services. These lower expenses were partially offset by an increase of $0.4 million in the period ended March 28, 2009 for additional
allowance for bad debts reserves.

Amortization of intangible assets. For the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 the decrease in amortization of intangible assets of $0.9
million over the comparable period of 2008 reflects lower amortization expense due to the decrease in the basis of intangible assets subsequent
to the impairment write down.

Restructuring charge. We recorded a charge of $0.7 million in the quarter ended March 28, 2009 driven by the reduction of over 50 people.
During the first fiscal quarter of 2008, the Company reduced its global workforce by approximately 30 employees resulting in a charge of $0.9
million.
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Other income (expense). Our net other income (expense) consisted of the following categories (in thousands):

Three-Months Ended

Change
March 28,

2009
March 29,

2008
Interest income $ 15 $ 98 $ (83) (84.7)%
Interest expense (266) (77) (189) (245.5)%
Other, net (1,359) 454 (1,813) (399.3)%

Total other income (expenses) $ (1,610) $ 475 $ (2,085) (438.9)%

For the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 we incurred higher interest expense due to Company�s installment payment of the debt
obligations issued during the third quarter of 2008. For the three- month period ended March 28, 2009, we incurred foreign exchange losses of
$1.4 million due to exchange rate fluctuations associated with our extensive inter-company balances between our various global entities over the
comparable period of 2008. As of December 27, 2008, we had reclassified our loans between the Company and our Japan subsidiary as �Non
Permanent�. As a result, foreign exchange changes in the yen are charged to the income statement on those loans, representing $1.3 million of the
$1.4 million �other, net� line item in the period ended March 28, 2009.

Provision for income taxes. The income tax benefit of $19,000 for the three month period ended March 28, 2009 was the result of foreign tax
benefit of $39,000 offset by $20,000 in state tax expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At March 28, 2009, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $16.9 compared to $24.0 million as of December 27, 2008. At March 28, 2009, we had
working capital of $48.6 million compared to $57.7 million at December 27, 2008.

Operating activities used cash of $6.4 million for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 as a result of our net loss for the quarter of $10.6
million offset by certain non-cash charges including $1.4 million of depreciation, $0.3 million of stock-based compensation, accounts receivable
reserves of $0.4 million, unrealized loss on foreign exchange $0.8 million and increases in net working capital of $1.3 million. Operating
activities provided cash of $5.7 million for the three-month period ended March 29, 2008, as a result of our net loss of $0.7 million and certain
non-cash charges including $2.5 million associated with amortization and depreciation, $0.9 million in stock-based compensation, and increases
in net working capital of $2.9 million.

Investing activities for the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 used cash of $0.3 million related to cash outlays of capital equipment
acquisitions. Investing activities for the three-month period ended March 29, 2008 used cash of $1.5 million related to cash outlays of capital
equipment acquisitions.

For the three-month period ended March 28, 2009, financing activities used cash of $0.1 million for repayment of debt obligation. For the
three-month period ended March 29, 2008, financing activities used cash of $0.3 million due to the repurchase of common stock in the open
market.

In February 2007, we entered into a two-year agreement, subsequently extended until May 2009, for a revolving line of credit facility with a
maximum principal amount of up to $15.0 million. The instrument governing the facility includes certain financial covenants regarding
minimum liquidity ratio and net tangible worth. All borrowings under this credit line bear interest, at our election, at a per annum rate equal to
the bank�s prime rate or at the London Interbank Offered Rate (or LIBOR) plus 2.25%. The revolving line of credit agreement includes a
provision for the issuance of commercial or standby letters of credit by the bank on our behalf. The value of all letters of credit outstanding
reduces the total line of credit available. We had no outstanding letters of credit against this line as of March 28, 2009. The revolving line of
credit is collateralized by a blanket lien on all of our domestic assets excluding intellectual property and real estate. We may use the proceeds of
any future borrowing under this credit facility for general corporate purposes. On May 11, 2009, the Company and Comerica executed the
second amendment to the revolving credit facility at essentially the same terms as before, which now extends the facility to April 30, 2011. The
second amendment was executed on May 11, 2009, with an effective date of April 29, 2009. All borrowings under this second amendment bear
interest at a per annum rate equal to the bank�s prime rate, or at the LIBOR rate plus 2.75% with a minimum borrowing rate of 5.25% per annum.
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In July 2008, we entered into a loan agreement pursuant to which we borrowed $13.5 million. The loan initially bears interest at the rate of
7.18% per annum, which rate will be reset after five years to 3.03% over the then weekly average yield of five-year U.S Dollar Interest Rate
Swaps as published by the Federal Reserve. Monthly principal and interest payments are based on a twenty year amortization for the first sixty
months and fifteen- year amortization thereafter. The remaining principal balance of the loan and any accrued but unpaid interest will be due on
August 1, 2018. The loan is secured, in part, by a lien on and security interest in the building and land comprising our principal officer in
Milpitas, California.

We have evaluated and will continue to evaluate acquisitions of products, technologies or business that are complementary to our business.
These activities may result in product and business investments, which may affect our cash position and working capital balances. Some of these
activities might require significant cash outlays. For example in the third quarter of 2007, our Board of Directors authorized stock repurchase
program to $4.0 million, of which there remains $1.3 million available for future purchases. We believe our working capital will be sufficient to
meet our needs through the next twelve months.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our exposure to market risk does not differ materially from that discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 27, 2008 filed with the SEC on March 27, 2009. However, we cannot give any assurance as to the effect that future changes in
interest rates or foreign currency rates will have on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer, Timothy J. Stultz, and our Chief Financial Officer James P.
Moniz, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
As of March 28, 2009 our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information that we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities
and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

On February 18, 2009, Mr. James P. Moniz was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer, replacing Mr. Bruce Crawford.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three-month period ended March 28, 2009 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
In August 2005, KLA-Tencor Corporation, or KLA, filed a complaint against us in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California. The complaint alleges that certain of our products infringe two of KLA�s patents. On January 30, 2007, KLA added a third patent to
their claim. The complaint seeks a preliminary and permanent injunction against the sale of these products as well as the recovery of monetary
damages and attorneys� fees. We do not believe that any of our products infringe the intellectual property of any third party and we intend to
vigorously and aggressively defend ourselves in the litigation. As part of such defense, we have filed a request for re-examination of the three
allegedly infringed KLA patents with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office, or PTO. In March 2006, we filed a motion for and were granted a
stay in the patent litigation case until such re-examination is completed. On July 28, 2008, the PTO issued a Notice of Intent to issue a
Reexamination Certificate for one of the KLA patents. The other two patent reexaminations remain pending. In all three of the reexamination
proceedings, the PTO has issued Office Actions rejecting numerous claims and KLA has amended the claims in response.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
In addition to the other information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have identified the following risks and uncertainties
that may have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Investors should carefully consider the
risks described below before making an investment decision. The risks described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks not
presently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations. Our business could be harmed by
any of these risks. The trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks and investors may lose all or part of their
investment. This section should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto, and Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in this Form 10-Q.

The current severe slowing in the general economy and in the semiconductor industry have caused us recent losses and reductions in
available cash, and may continue to negatively impact our financial performance.

The current recession in the global economy and the current downturn in the semiconductor industry have severely impacted and could further
impact customer demand for our products and our financial performance. The degree of this impact will depend on a number of factors,
including whether the U.S. economy and the global economy continue a prolonged recession. Demand for semiconductor equipment depends on
consumer spending. Economic uncertainty may lead to a decrease in consumer spending and may cause certain customers to cancel or delay
placing orders.

We may also experience supplier or customer issues as a result of current adverse macroeconomic conditions. If our customers have difficulties
in obtaining capital or financing, this could result in lower sales. Customers with liquidity issues could also result in an increase in bad debt
expense. These conditions could also affect our key suppliers, which could affect their ability to supply parts and result in delays of our customer
shipments. These conditions make it difficult for us to accurately predict our business, and identify the risks that may affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Because of the negative effects of the current recession, we may have to take further actions to reduce costs, which could reduce our ability to
significantly invest in research and development at levels we believe are necessary. If we are unable to effectively align our cost structure with
prevailing market conditions, we will experience additional losses and additional reductions in our cash and equivalents.

If the need arose, it would not be easy for us to obtain short-term, longer-term or capital financing in these weak global credit markets. If we are
not able to suitably adapt to these economic conditions in a timely manner, our results of operations could be materially and adversely impacted.

We are exposed to risks associated with the ongoing financial crisis and weakened global economy.

The recent severe tightening of the credit markets, turmoil in the financial markets and weakened global economy are contributing to slowdowns
in the industries in which we operate. The slowdowns are expected to worsen if these economic conditions are prolonged or deteriorate further.
If we are unable to timely and appropriately adapt to changes resulting from the difficult economic environment, our business, financial
condition and results of operations will be adversely affected, and we may be required to raise additional funds through public or private equity
or debt financings. In that event, we could be forced to obtain financing on terms that are not favorable to us and, in the case of an equity or
convertible debt financing, may result in dilution to our stockholders.

Our largest customers account for a substantial portion of our revenue, and our revenue would materially decline if one or more of these
customers were to purchase significantly fewer of our systems.

Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in each quarter and each year has been derived from sales to relatively few customers, and we
expect this trend to continue. There are only a limited number of large companies operating in the semiconductor industry. Accordingly, we
expect that we will continue to depend on a small number of large customers for a significant portion of our revenues for the foreseeable future.
If our current relationships with our large customers are impaired, or if we are unable to develop similar collaborative relationships with
important customers in the future, our revenues could significantly decline.

30

Edgar Filing: NANOMETRICS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 44



Table of Contents

Our current and potential competitors have significantly greater resources than we do, and increased competition could impair sales of our
products.

We operate in the highly competitive semiconductor industry and face competition from a number of companies, many of which have greater
financial, engineering, manufacturing, marketing and customer support resources than we do. As a result, our competitors may be able to
respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or market developments by devoting greater resources to the development, promotion
and sale of products, which could impair sales of our products. Moreover, there has been merger and acquisition activity among our competitors
and potential competitors. These transactions by our competitors and potential competitors may provide them with a competitive advantage over
us by enabling them to rapidly expand their product offerings and service capabilities to meet a broader range of customer needs. Many of our
customers and potential customers in the semiconductor industry are large companies that require global support and service for their metrology
systems. Some of our larger or more geographically diverse competitors might be better equipped to provide this global support.

We depend on OEM suppliers for sales of our integrated metrology systems, and the loss of our OEM suppliers as customers could harm our
business.

We believe that sales of integrated metrology systems will continue to be an important source of our revenues. Sales of our integrated metrology
systems depend upon the ability of OEMs to sell semiconductor equipment products that include our metrology systems as components. If our
OEMs are unable to sell such products, or if they choose to focus their attention on products that do not integrate our systems, our business could
suffer. If we were to lose our OEMs as customers for any reason, our ability to realize sales from integrated metrology systems would be
diminished, which would harm our business.

We obtain some of the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a single source or a limited group of suppliers, and the
partial or complete loss of one of these suppliers could cause production delays and significant loss of revenue.

We rely on outside vendors to manufacture many components and subassemblies. Certain components, subassemblies and services necessary for
the manufacture of our systems are obtained from a sole supplier or limited group of suppliers. We do not maintain any long-term supply
agreements with any of our suppliers. We have entered into arrangements with J.A. Woolam Co., Inc. for the purchase of the spectroscopic
ellipsometer component incorporated in our advanced measurement systems. We also have supply agreements with MPA and Spectral Systems,
and subcontract manufacturing agreements with Fox Semiconductor, IFAT and Toho Technologies. Our reliance on a sole or a limited group of
suppliers involves several risks, including the following:

� we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of required components;

� we have reduced control over pricing and the timely delivery of components and subassemblies; and

� our suppliers may be unable to develop technologically advanced products to support our growth and development of new systems.
Some of our suppliers have relatively limited financial and other resources. Because the manufacturing of certain of these components and
subassemblies involves extremely complex processes and requires long lead times, we may experience delays or shortages caused by our
suppliers. If we were forced to seek alternative sources of supply or to manufacture such components or subassemblies internally, we could be
forced to redesign our systems, which could cause production delays and prevent us from shipping our systems to customers on a timely basis.
Any inability to obtain adequate deliveries from our suppliers, or any other circumstance that would restrict our ability to ship our products,
could damage relationships with current and prospective customers, harm our business and result in significant loss of revenue.

Our success depends on the performance of our senior management and on our ability to identify, hire and retain key management
personnel.

Our Chief Executive Officer joined the Company in August 2007 and in September 2008, our former Chief Financial Officer and Vice
President, Administration, who joined us in November 2007, was replaced, on an interim basis, by Bruce Crawford, our Chief Operating Officer.
Our former Chief Accounting Officer also resigned in December 2008. James P. Moniz was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (and our
principal accounting officer) on February 18, 2009. Although we have employment agreements with certain key members of our senior
management team, including Messrs. Stultz, Crawford and Moniz, these individuals or other key employees may still leave us. We do not have
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Competition for such personnel in our industry is intense, and we may not be successful in attracting and retaining qualified employees. If we
fail to attract, motivate and retain qualified senior management personnel, our business could be harmed and our ability to implement our
strategy could be compromised.

Restructuring of our operations may disrupt our business and adversely affect our financial condition and operating results.

Since 2007, we have taken steps, including reductions in force, facility closures, and internal reorganizations to reduce the size and cost of our
operations and to better match our resources with our market opportunities. We may take similar steps in the future to improve efficiency and
match our resources with market opportunities, and as a result of such actions, we may incur restructuring expenses. In the first and third
quarters of 2008, we undertook a restructuring that involved a reduction of our global workforce by approximately 30 and 34 employees,
respectively, which action caused us to record restructuring and reorganization charges of $870,000 and $655,000, respectively. In the first
quarter of 2009, we reduced the global workforce further by 51 employees and recorded a restructuring charge of $689,000.

Several factors could cause a restructuring to adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. These include potential
disruption of our operations, the development of our technology, our supply chain and other aspects of our business. Employee morale and
productivity could also suffer and result in unintended employee attrition. Loss of sales, service and engineering talent, in particular, could
damage our business. Any restructuring would require substantial management time and attention and may divert management from other
important work. If we undertake further employee reductions or other restructuring activities, we will likely record restructuring and related
expenses and accounting charges. Accounting charges may include inventory and technology-related write-offs, workforce reduction costs and
charges relating to consolidation of excess facilities, and if we are required to take a substantial charge related to any future restructuring
activities, our results of operations would be adversely affected in the period in which we take such a charge. Moreover, we could encounter
delays in executing any restructuring plans, which could cause further disruption and additional unanticipated expense.

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could have a
material effect on our business.

As a publicly traded company, we are subject to rules adopted by the SEC pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Section 404 requires us to include an internal control report from management in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. The internal control report
must include the following: (1) a statement of management�s responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, (2) a statement identifying the framework used by management to conduct the required evaluation of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting and (3) management�s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as
of the end of each fiscal year, including a statement as to whether or not internal control over financial reporting is effective. A statement that
our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on management�s internal control over financial reporting was
not required for 2008 as we are not an accelerated filer.

Our assessment as of December 29, 2007 identified a material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting, which also adversely
impacted our disclosure controls and procedures. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controls over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company�s annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weakness identified in 2007 was regarding our internal controls for
the provision of income taxes in foreign jurisdictions.

Since discovery of the material weakness in 2007, we performed extensive additional work and implemented several procedures to obtain
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial statements. Based on our testing of these enhanced procedures, in the quarter
ended December 27, 2008, management determined that as of December 27, 2008, we have remediated the material weakness in internal
controls over financial reporting and the controls are now operating effectively. Even with this remediation complete, however, we could have
material weaknesses in the future. For additional information refer to Item 9A �Controls and Procedures�.

If we deliver systems with defects, our credibility will be harmed, revenue from, and market acceptance of, our systems will decrease and we
could expend significant capital and resources as a result of such defects.

Notwithstanding our internal quality specifications, our systems have sometimes contained errors, defects and bugs when introduced. If we
deliver systems with errors, defects or bugs, our credibility and the market acceptance and sales of our systems would be harmed. Further, if our
systems contain errors, defects or bugs, we may be required to expend significant capital and resources to alleviate such problems. Defects could
also lead to product liability lawsuits against us or
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against our customers. We have agreed to indemnify our customers in some circumstances against liability arising from defects in our systems.
In the event of a successful product liability claim, we could be obligated to pay damages significantly in excess of our product liability
insurance limits.

If we experience significant delays in shipping our products to our customers, our business and reputation may suffer.

Our products are complex and require technical expertise to design and manufacture properly. Various problems occasionally arise during the
manufacturing process that may cause delays and/or impair product quality. Any significant delays stemming from the failure of our products to
meet or exceed our internal quality specifications, or for any other reasons, would delay our shipments. Shipment delays could harm our
business and reputation in the industry.

Successful infringement claims by third parties could result in substantial damages, lost product sales and the loss of important intellectual
property rights by us.

Our commercial success depends, in part, on our ability to avoid infringing or misappropriating patents or other proprietary rights owned by
third parties. From time to time we may receive communications from third parties asserting that our metrology systems may contain design
features which are claimed to infringe on their proprietary rights. For example, in August 2005, we were served with a complaint by
KLA-Tencor, or KLA, alleging that certain of our products infringe two of KLA�s patents, Patent No. 6,483,580 and Patent No. 6,590,656. In
January 2006, KLA added Patent No. 6,611,330 to its claim. For additional information, refer to Part II, Item 1. Legal Proceedings. Our new or
current products may infringe valid intellectual property rights, but even if our products do not infringe, we may be required to expend
significant sums of money to defend against infringement claims, or to actively protect our intellectual property rights through litigation.

Variations in the amount of time it takes for us to sell our systems may cause fluctuations in our operating results, which could cause our
stock price to decline.

Variations in the length of our sales cycles could cause our revenues to fluctuate widely from period to period. Our customers generally take
long periods of time to evaluate our metrology systems. We expend significant resources educating and providing information to our prospective
customers regarding the uses and benefits of our systems. The length of time that it takes for us to complete a sale depends upon many factors,
including:

� the efforts of our sales force and our independent sales representatives;

� the complexity of the customer�s metrology needs;

� the internal technical capabilities and sophistication of the customer;

� the customer�s budgetary constraints; and

� the quality and sophistication of the customer�s current processing equipment.
Because of the number of factors influencing the sales process, the period between our initial contact with a customer and the time at which we
recognize revenue from that customer, if at all, varies widely. Our sales cycles, including the time it takes for us to build a product to customer
specifications after receiving an order, typically range from three to nine months. Occasionally our sales cycles can be much longer, particularly
with customers in Asia who may require longer evaluation periods. During the sales cycles, we commit substantial resources to our sales efforts
in advance of receiving any revenue, and we may never receive any revenue from a customer despite our sales efforts.

If we do complete a sale, customers often purchase only one of our systems and then evaluate its performance for a lengthy period of time before
purchasing additional systems. The purchases are generally made through purchase orders rather than through long-term contracts. The number
of additional products that a customer purchases, if any, depends on many factors, including a customer�s capacity requirements. The period
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between a customer�s initial purchase and any subsequent purchases is unpredictable and can vary from three months to a year or longer.
Variations in the length of this period could cause fluctuations in our operating results, which could adversely affect our stock price.

Relatively small fluctuations in our system sales volume may cause our operating results to vary significantly each quarter.

During any quarter, a significant portion of our revenue is derived from the sale of a relatively small number of systems. Our automated
metrology systems range in price from approximately $200,000 to over $1,300,000 per system, and our integrated metrology systems range in
price from approximately $80,000 to $500,000 per system. Accordingly, a small change in the number or mix of systems that we sell could
cause significant changes in our operating results.

33

Edgar Filing: NANOMETRICS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 50



Table of Contents

We depend on orders that are received and shipped in the same quarter, and therefore our results of operations may be subject to significant
variability from quarter to quarter.

Our net sales in any given quarter depend upon a combination of orders received in that quarter for shipment in that quarter and shipments from
backlog. Our backlog at the beginning of each quarter does not include all systems sales needed to achieve expected revenues for that quarter.
Consequently, we are dependent on obtaining orders for systems to be shipped in the same quarter that the order is received. Moreover,
customers may reschedule shipments, and production difficulties could delay shipments. Accordingly, we have limited visibility into future
product shipments, and our results of operations may be subject to significant variability from quarter to quarter.

Because of the high cost of switching equipment vendors in our markets, it may be difficult for us to attract customers from our competitors
even if our metrology systems are superior to theirs.

We believe that once a semiconductor customer has selected one vendor�s metrology system, the customer generally relies upon that system and,
to the extent possible, subsequent generations of the same vendor�s system, for the life of the application. Once a vendor�s metrology system has
been installed, a customer must often make substantial technical modifications and may experience downtime in order to switch to another
vendor�s metrology system. Accordingly, unless our systems offer performance or cost advantages that outweigh a customer�s expense of
switching to our systems, it will be difficult for us to achieve significant sales from that customer once it has selected another vendor�s system for
an application.

If we fail to develop new and enhanced metrology systems we will likely lose market share to our competitors.

We operate in an industry that is subject to technological changes, changes in customer demands and the introduction of new, higher
performance systems with short product life cycles. To be competitive, we must continually design, develop and introduce in a timely manner
new metrology systems that meet the performance and price demands of semiconductor manufacturers and suppliers. We must also continue to
refine our current systems so that they remain competitive. We may experience difficulties or delays in our development efforts with respect to
new systems, and we may not ultimately be successful in developing them. Any significant delay in releasing new systems could adversely
affect our reputation, give a competitor a first-to-market advantage or allow a competitor to achieve greater market share.

Lack of market acceptance for our new products may affect our ability to generate revenue and may harm our business.

We have recently introduced several products to the market including the NanoCD Suite, Impulse and the Lynx platform. We have invested
substantial time and resources into the development of these products. However, we cannot accurately predict the future level of acceptance of
our new products by our customers. As a result, we may not be able to generate anticipated revenue from sales of these products. While we
anticipate that our new products will become an increasingly larger component of our business, their failure to gain acceptance with our
customers could materially harm our business. Additionally, if our new products do gain market acceptance, our ability to sell our existing
products may be impeded and our business would suffer.

Our intellectual property may be infringed by third parties despite our efforts to protect it, which could threaten our future success and
competitive position and harm our operating results.

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to obtain and maintain proprietary technology for our principal
product families, and we rely, in part, on patent, trade secret and trademark law to protect that technology. If we fail to adequately protect our
intellectual property, it will be easier for our competitors to sell competing products. We own or may license patents relating to our metrology
systems, and have filed applications for additional patents. Any of our pending patent applications may be rejected, and we may not in the future
be able to develop additional proprietary technology that is patentable. In addition, the patents we own, have been issued or licensed, may not
provide us with competitive advantages and may be challenged by third parties. Third parties may also design around these patents.

In addition to patent protection, we rely upon trade secret protection for our confidential and proprietary information and technology. We
routinely enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees. However, in the event that these agreements may be breached, we may not
have adequate remedies. Our confidential and proprietary information and technology might also be independently developed by or become
otherwise known to third parties. We may be required to initiate litigation in order to enforce any patents issued to or licensed by us, or to
determine the scope or validity of a third party�s patent or other proprietary rights. Any such litigation, regardless of outcome, could be expensive
and time consuming, and could subject us to significant liabilities or require us to re-engineer our product or obtain expensive licenses from third
parties, any of which would adversely affect our business and operating results. In March 2006, we filed a complaint against Nova Measuring
Instruments for infringing our Patent No. Re 34,783. In October 2006, we filed a new complaint against Nova for infringement of Patent
No. 5,867,276 and 7,115,858. In April 2007, we and Nova agreed to dismiss, without prejudice, all pending patent litigation and entered into a
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If we choose to acquire new and complementary businesses, products or technologies instead of developing them ourselves, we may be
unable to complete these acquisitions or may not be able to successfully integrate an acquired business in a cost-effective and non-disruptive
manner.

Our success depends on our ability to continually enhance and broaden our product offerings in response to changing technologies, customer
demands and competitive pressures. To achieve this, from time to time we have acquired complementary businesses, products, or technologies
instead of developing them ourselves and may choose to do so in the future. For example, in May 2008, we acquired Tevet Process Control
Technologies, Ltd., an integrated metrology company serving the worldwide semiconductor and solar manufacturing industry. At the outset, we
do not know if we will be able to complete any acquisitions, or whether we will be able to successfully integrate any acquired business, operate
them profitably or retain their key employees. Integrating any business, product or technology that we acquire could be expensive and time
consuming, disrupt our ongoing business and distract our management. In addition, in order to finance any acquisitions, we may be required to
raise additional funds through public or private equity or debt financings. In that event, we could be forced to obtain financing on terms that are
not favorable to us and, in the case of equity or convertible debt financing, which may result in dilution to our stockholders. If we are unable to
integrate any acquired entities, products or technologies effectively, our business will suffer.

We manufacture all of our systems at a limited number of facilities, and any prolonged disruption in the operations of those facilities could
reduce our revenues.

We produce our systems in our manufacturing facility located in Milpitas, California, and we use contract manufacturers in China, Israel, Japan
and the United States. In addition, we perform limited subassembly for certain products at our York, England facility. Our manufacturing
processes are highly complex and require sophisticated, costly equipment and specially designed facilities. As a result, any prolonged disruption
in the operations of our manufacturing facilities, such as those resulting from a severe fire or earthquake, could seriously harm our ability to
satisfy our customer order deadlines.

Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may be less effective in some foreign countries where intellectual property rights are not as
well protected as in the United States.

In 2008, 2007 and 2006, 70.5%, 68.2% and 65.0%, respectively, of our total net revenues were derived from sales to customers in foreign
countries, including certain countries in Asia, such as Japan, South Korea, China and Taiwan. The laws of some foreign countries do not protect
our proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws of the United States, and many U.S. companies have encountered substantial problems
in protecting their proprietary rights against infringement in such countries. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property in these
countries, it would be easier for our competitors to sell competing products and our business would suffer.

Our results of operations could vary as a result of the methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our accounting policies.

The methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our accounting policies have a significant impact on our results of operations, see
�Critical Accounting Policies� in Item 2 of this 10-Q. Such methods, estimates and judgments are, by their nature, subject to substantial risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, and factors may arise over time that leads us to change our methods, estimates and judgments. Changes in those
methods, estimates and judgments could significantly affect our results of operations. In particular, our operating results have been affected by
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) for the calculation of share-based compensation expense and by implementation of SFAS 142 and 144 regarding
the testing and potential impairment of long-lived assets such as goodwill and other intangible assets. The process of evaluating potential
impairments is highly subjective and requires significant judgment, and our results of operations could vary in the future if the forecasts used in
subjective assessments are inaccurate.

Our operating results have varied in the past and probably will continue to vary significantly in the future, which will cause volatility in our
stock price.

Our quarterly and annual operating results have varied significantly in the past and are likely to vary in the future, which volatility could cause
our stock price to decline. Some of the factors that may influence our operating results and subject our stock to extreme price and volume
fluctuations include:

� changes in customer demand for our systems;
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� economic conditions in the semiconductor industries;

� the timing, cancellation or delay of customer orders and shipments;

� market acceptance of our products and our customers� products;

� our ability to recover the higher costs associated with meeting our customers� increasing service demands;

� competitive pressures on product prices and changes in pricing by our customers or suppliers;

� the timing of new product announcements and product releases by us or our competitors and our ability to design, introduce and
manufacture new products on a timely and cost-effective basis;

� the occurrence of potential impairments of long-lived assets;

� the timing of acquisitions of businesses, products or technologies;

� the levels of our fixed expenses, relative to our revenue levels; and

� fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, particularly the Japanese yen and the British pound sterling.
If our operating results in any period fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors, the market price of our common stock
would likely decline.

We incur significant costs as a result of complying with laws and regulations affecting public companies.

Compliance with laws and regulations affecting public companies, including the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, has resulted in
and, we expect, will continue to result in substantial accounting, legal and administrative costs. In particular, Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 and the rules of the SEC and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board impose requirements with respect to the evaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal controls. The cost of complying with these requirements is substantial.

We are highly dependent on international sales and operations, which exposes us to foreign political and economic risks.

We maintain facilities in Japan, Taiwan, the United Kingdom, South Korea, China, Israel and the European Union. We anticipate that
international sales will continue to account for a significant portion of our revenues. International sales and operations carry inherent risks such
as:

� regulatory limitations imposed by foreign governments;

� obstacles to the protection of our intellectual property, political, military and terrorism risks;
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� disruptions or delays in shipments caused by customs brokers or other government agencies;

� unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, tariffs, customs, duties and other trade barriers;

� difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations; and

� and potentially adverse tax consequences resulting from changes in tax laws.
If any of these risks materialize and we are unable to manage them, our international sales and operations would suffer.

We are exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates of foreign currency.

As a global concern, we face exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. With our operations in Japan, South Korea, the
United Kingdom, Taiwan, China and Israel, a significant percentage of our cash flows are exposed to foreign currency risk. These exposures
may change over time as business practices evolve and could have a material adverse impact on our financial results and cash flow.
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We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations that could impose substantial costs upon us and may harm our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Some of our operations use substances regulated under various federal, state, local, and international laws governing the environment, including
those relating to the storage, use, discharge, disposal, labeling, and human exposure to hazardous and toxic materials. We could incur costs, fines
and civil or criminal sanctions, third-party property damage or personal injury claims, or could be required to incur substantial investigation or
remediation costs, if we were to violate or become liable under environmental laws. Liability under environmental laws can be joint and several
and without regard to comparative fault. Compliance with current or future environmental laws and regulations could restrict our ability to
expand our facilities or require us to acquire additional expensive equipment, modify our manufacturing processes, or incur other significant
expenses. We may violate environmental laws or regulations in the future as a result of human error, the inability to obtain permits, equipment
failure or other causes.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company
and may affect the trading price of our common stock.

The anti-takeover provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control by limiting our
ability to engage in a business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of three years after the person becomes an interested
stockholder, even if a change of control would be beneficial to our existing stockholders. In addition, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws
may discourage, delay or prevent a change in our management or control over us that stockholders may consider favorable. Our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws:

� authorize the issuance of �blank check� preferred stock that could be issued by our board of directors to thwart a takeover attempt;

� establish a classified board of directors, as a result of which it will be more difficult for our stockholders to change the composition
of our board of directors in a relatively short period of time;

� limit who may call special meetings of stockholders; and

� prohibit stockholder action by written consent, requiring all actions to be taken at a meeting of the stockholders.
Political instability could affect our business and results of operations.

The ongoing threat of terrorism targeted at the United States or other regions where we conduct business increases the uncertainty in our markets
and the economy in general. This uncertainty is likely to result in economic stagnation, which would harm our business. In addition, increased
international political instability may hinder our ability to do business by increasing our costs of operations. For example, our transportation
costs, insurance costs and sales efforts may become more expensive as a result of geopolitical tension. These tensions may also negatively affect
our suppliers and customers. If this International economic and political instability continues or increases, our business and results of operations
could be harmed.

We may not maintain NASDAQ listing requirements, which would adversely affect the price and liquidity of our common stock.

To maintain the listing of our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Market, we are required to meet certain listing requirements, including a
minimum bid price of $1.00 per share. If our stock trades below the $1.00 minimum bid price for 30 consecutive business days, NASDAQ may
choose to notify us that it may delist our common stock from The NASDAQ Global Market. If the closing bid price of our common stock did
not thereafter regain compliance for a minimum of 10 consecutive trading days during the 180 days following notification by NASDAQ,
NASDAQ could delist our common stock from trading on The NASDAQ Global Market. There can be no assurance that our common stock will
remain eligible for trading on The NASDAQ Global Market. If our stock were delisted, the ability of our stockholders to sell any of our common
stock at all would be severely, if not completely, limited, causing our stock price to continue to decline.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
We did not purchase any shares of our common stock during the three�month period ended March 28, 2009.

On July 26, 2007, our Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $4.0 million of our common stock. Share repurchases under this
program may be made through open market and privately negotiated transactions, at times and in such amounts as management deems
appropriate. The timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend on a variety of factors including price, corporate and regulatory
requirements and other market conditions. The stock repurchase program may be limited or terminated at any time without prior notice. As of
March 28, 2009, there remained $1.3 million available for the future purchase of shares of our common stock.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:

Exhibit No. Description

  3(i) Certificate of Incorporation

  3.1(1) Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant.

  3(ii) Bylaws

  3.2(1) Bylaws of the Registrant.

10 Material Contracts

Management Contracts, Compensatory Plans, Contracts or Arrangements

10.1(2) Form of Offer Letter to James P. Moniz.

10.2(2) Form of Executive Severance Agreement � James P. Moniz.

10.3(3) Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Tevet Process Control Technologies, Ltd., and Nanometrics-Israel Ltd., dated May
7, 2008.

10.4 Amendment No. 1 to the Above Referenced Asset Purchase Agreement, dated April 6, 2009.

10.5(4) Security Agreement, Balloon Promissory Note, and Deed of Trust by and between GE Commercial Finance Business Property
Corporation and the Registrant each dated July 25, 2008.

10.6(4) Confidential Settlement Agreement and General Release by and between Gary Schaefer and the Registrant, dated September
5, 2008.

10.7(5) Loan and Security Agreement effective as of February 14, 2007 by and between Comerica Bank, the Registrant, Accent
Optical Technologies Nanometrics, Inc. and Nanometrics IVS Division, Inc.

10.8(2) Notice of Extension of the Maturity Date of the Above Referenced Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of February 14,
2009.

10.9 First Amendment to the Above Referenced Loan and Security Agreement dated September 14, 2007.

10.10 Second Amendment to the Above Referenced Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2009, with an effective date
of April 29, 2009.

31 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications

31.1 Certification of Timothy J. Stultz, principal executive officer of the Registrant, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15a-14(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of James P. Moniz, principal financial officer of the Registrant, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15a-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Section 1350 Certifications

32.1 Certification of Timothy J. Stultz, principal executive officer of the Registrant, and James P. Moniz, principal financial officer
of the Registrant, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 5, 2006.
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(2) Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 27, 2009.

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with the Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 7, 2008.

(4) Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 6, 2008.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed with the Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2007.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

NANOMETRICS INCORPORATED

(Registrant)

By: /s/ James P. Moniz
James P. Moniz
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: May 12, 2009
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